BOARD OF VA RIANCES AND APPEALS
REGULAR MEETING
NOVEM BER 21, 2012
(Approved: 1/10/13)
A.

CALL TO ORDER

The regu lar meeting of the Board of Variances and Appeals (Board) was called to order by
Chairman Kevin Tanaka at approximately, 1:31 p.m., Wednesday, November 21, 2012, in the
Planning Department Conference Ro om , first floor, Kalana Pakui Building, 250 South High Street,
Wailuk u, Isla nd of M aui.
A quorum of the Board w as present. (See Re cord of Attendance.)
Chairman Kevin Tanaka: Go od afternoon. I’ll now call the meeting of the Board of Variances and
Appeals to order. It is now 1:31. We have a quorum of six of us here. First item on our agenda,
Trish?
B.

APPEALS
1.

To determine a hearings officer to preside over the following matter, and
conduct a pre-hearing conference, should the Board designate itself to hear
the case:
a.

RODNEY KILBORN appealing the Director of the Department of Parks
and Re creation's decision to not allow a stand up paddle surfing event
at Hookipa Beach Park located off o f Ha na Hig hw ay, H aiku, M aui,
Ha waii; TMK: (2 ) 2-5-004:025 (BV AA 20120010).

Ms. Trisha Kapua`ala read the agenda item into the record.
Ms. Kapua`ala: And I’d like to introduce the appellant, Mr. Rodney Kilborn.
Ms. Mary Blaine Johnston: Deputy C orporation Co unsel, Mary Blaine Johnston, representing the
Director of the Department of Parks and R ecreation in this matter. We’re here today . . . Mr. K ilborn
has filed an appeal. We need to get a hearing date for the a ppe al and we’re asking tha t the Board
appoint itself as the hearings officer. The case is that Mr. Kilborn had wanted to put on a stand up
paddle contest at Hookipa in mid-February and was turned down . So time is kind of time critical,
and that’s why we’re asking the Board to take this over to hear it as quickly as possible. If we go
through selecting an outside hearings officer, there’s not only the cost but there’s all the delays
inherent in that. And I think Trisha had said that the December 13 th meeting is availab le, if tha t’s
OK with all of you.
Chairman Tanaka: OK. So you are both agreed that the 13 th wo uld be . . . ? OK. OK. James, as
far as what you are describing telling me, we need to . . .
Mr. James Giro ux: If the Board decides to take on the hearings officer’s role, all we need to do

Board of Variances and Appeals
Minutes - November 21, 2012
Page 2
today is to figure out the prehearing schedule. If the parties are ready to agree to a prehearing
schedule, we can do that today. Basically, we need the witnesses . . . witness lists, exhibit lists,
and exh ibits to be exchanged by a date certain. And that would be determined on the record. And
if there’s any motions that need to be filed, that also should be determined by a date certain. So,
Trish, if there’s dates, mayb e we ca n agree on mayb e a we ek out, 14 days b efore. We sh ould have
a conversation with the litigants to s ee wh at would work best.
Chairman Tanaka: Typically, would it be a minimum of seven days before that December date?
Ms. Kapua`ala: Fourteen days, 14 or 15 days. S o what would be acceptable for us would be
Thursday, November 29 th or Friday, November 30th for the witness list, exh ibit list, and exh ibits to
be due, submitted to our department by 4 :30. On e original, plu s 15 copies, p lease. And the staff
wo uld also like to request tha t the applica nt use alphabetical exhib its, and that the County use
numerical.
Ms. Johnston: Is it possible to move that date up to Decemb er 3 rd because I’m gonna be on
vacation for that . . . first vacation in two years for a week?
Ms. Kapua`ala: Sure.
Ms . Johnston: OK. Than k you. So Decem ber 3 rd . That will give Mr. Kilborn . . . (inau dible) . . .
Ch airm an Tanaka: Mr. Kilborn, is tha t acceptable to yo u? OK .
Mr. Giro ux: If there’s any motions anticipated, pre-hearing, pre-trial me mos, anything like that, we ’ll
just make the same date, December 3 rd , be the drop dead deadline for that. And then our rules take
care of any response, just in ca se. Discovery issues, if they should arise, should be brought to our
attention as so on as possib le. Any subpoenas need to be served on the Ch air.
Chairman Tanaka: OK . Board Mem bers, it ha s . . . the request has been made that this Board on
December 13 th shall act as the hearings office r to hear this appeal. Any concerns? Any questions?
Any discussio n regarding that?
Mr. Ray Shimabuku: Looking ove r my sc hedule, I look like I’m not gonna be here. And being a
stand up paddler m yse lf, it’s very inte resting to m e in hearing this thing, but I, yo u know . . .
Chairman Tanaka: Well, James, please verify that the . . . on that December 13th date, if there is
a quorum, right, no matter what we will hear it on the 13 th? Whichever Members are present
becomes the hearings officer for the appeal which ultimately goes back to a full Board and a
decision is rendered?
Mr. Giro ux: R ight, if you don’t have a quorum, then my advice would be that you do the report and
repo rt to the full Board for a decision. But if you do have a quorum , if it’s agreeable to the litigants
that the quorum can make that decision and process the findings of fact, decision of law and orde r.
Chairman Tanaka: Yeah, so ideally . . . yeah, ideally on the 13th there w ill be a quorum and a
decision will be made on that date. For both parties, is that agreeable?
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Ms. Johnston: That’s fine.
Ch airm an Tanaka: OK .
Mr. Rick Tanner: Mr. Chairman, do we a need a motion and a vote to appoint ourselves as the
hea rings o fficer?
Mr. Giro ux: Y eah. So w hateve r . . . to take the dates, the deadlines, and the decision to be the
hearings officer, just take it as one motion, and then . . . if there ’s no disa greem ent, and then that’ll
just be part of the record.
Ms. Kapua`ala: Excuse me, Mr. Chair. I’d like to bring it to the Board and the parties’ attention that
we do have a variance hearing that day as well as a determination of a hearings officer for a second
appeal for the Piilani P rom enade. I’m not sure what the status of that case is because I know they
did go before the State Land U se Co mmission for an order to show cause. So I’m not too sure
wh at’s gonna happen with that. But if that’s still on the agenda, it should be a quick item. And
again, we have a public hearing for a variance on that day. So we’re not gonna have the full 1:30
till 4:30 or whatever it is that the Board can commit to on that day. So just wanted to bring that to
your attention just in case you might have an idea as far as the timing is concerned as to your line
of question ing and yo ur case, etc.
Chairman Tanaka: OK. Then, Trish, then my question would be, 14 days later, the end of
December, is there a meeting?
Ms. Kapua `ala: There is no m eeting on the week of Christm as. I am prepared with the Planning
Conference Room’s schedule and if the Board feels or the applicant or appellee feels that we
should schedule it on a different date rather than a regularly scheduled meeting date of the Board,
then we could arrange for a special meeting for a contested case hearing, which is not a public
hearing. It’s p rivate .
Chairman Tanaka: OK. There’s another change in our meeting time, starting earlier. Is, I guess,
the room available, for one thing?
Ms. Kapua`ala: Yes, it is. It is. And the other agenda item , both applican ts have received their
notice that their meeting will sta rt at 1:30 or soon thereafter. So having the contested case prior
to 1:30 would be p rope r.
Chairman Tanaka: Yeah. I would prefer that rather than setting a special date. H ere’s th e kick er:
I’m leaving on a flight tha t afterno on. S o 5 o ’clock. Let’s see for a start, Board M em bers, who are
here, who will be available that day. OK. So there are three Board Members who are not here that
wo uld hopefully be here. If it came down to it, I could be here, but I absolutely have to leave by a
certain time, if that was necessa ry. I’m hoping that that would w ork. So let’s say . . . How m uch
time would be, you think, how much earlier would we need to start?
Mr. Giroux: Or maybe we can ask . . . as fa r as . . . we’re not gonna hold you to it, but how many
witnesses do yo u anticipate to ca ll?
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Mr. Ro dney K ilborn: . . . (ina udible) . . .
Chairman Tanaka: Sorry. If you can . . . if you can . . . so rry, if you can speak into the mic.?
Identify yourself and speak into the mic., please.
Mr. Kilborn: OK. Rodney Kilborn. I would suggest probably two or three, not more than that. That’ll
be sufficient. If it’s too much, three, then I can just stay with two.
Chairman Tanaka: Oh, no, we’re just kinda looking for a gauge. We will not hold you to that. Trish,
you said that the other items have been scheduled for 1:30. At this date, you know, three weeks
out, cha nging that time . . .
Ms. Kapua`ala: Is po ssib le.
Mr. Giro ux: Y eah, let m e address that. If we start and we run into the 1:30, for Sunshine Law
reasons and public hearing reasons, we can start, call the meeting, take public hearing, take public
testimony, and then we can look at where w e’re at as far as the testimony o n the appeal cas e. If
we’re close to deliberation, what we can do is, we can tell the variance that, yo u know, to . . . that
we’re gon na re cess their case for a couple of hours, and then finish the litigation case, and they
wo n’t have to, you know, re-notice. If we can finish by 4:30, 5:00, 4:30, the varia nce, that would be
great. But if we can’t, we can then recess or we can table that variance for another date certain on
the record, and they wouldn’t have to go through the public hearing process again as long as the
parties understand what the next hearing date is and it’s announced at the meeting. So we can be
flexible. W e should probably let the variance people know that, you know. Probably if they’re flying
in witnesse s and stuff from off-isla nd or w hateve r, we need to kn ow that.
Ms. Kapua`ala: In th e Piilani P rom enade appeal, I believe they have attorneys fro m Oa hu that I’m
not too sure are gonna be appearing or not. And I believe for the variance, he does have an
architect tha t is no t on-islan d.
Mr. Giroux: For the Piilani case, is that for scheduling or is that for evidence?
Ms. Kapua`ala: To determ ine a hearings officer.
Mr. Giroux: Oh, OK. Just a hearings officer, so that can be taken cared of quickly. It’s the variance
that is go nna be the one that we’re gonna . . . if the a rchitect is coming in an d such, so . . .
Chairman Tanaka: OK . Yeah, I mean, in trying to sc hedule this, either end of the spectrum, if we
start early, we finish, and . . . but then, you know , if we finish at 12:00, we gotta wait till 1:30. Or
the other end where at 1:30, we’re still in . . . we’re still discussing this item. So I don’t know. Any
suggestions? 1:30, two hours earlier? 11:30 rather than 1:30 on that date? You w ouldn’t be a ble
. . . ? You wo uldn’t be here.
Ms . Kap ua`a la: Mr. C hair?
Chairman Tanaka: Yes?
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Ms. Kapua`ala: I’ve just been notified that we can feed you lunch.
Chairman Tanaka: OK . Let’s see. If we do that, again, if we d o no t have quo rum , if there are just
four of us here, we would be able to listen to and act as hearings office r to the Board itse lf. So let’s
go ahead and sch edule that. I me an, hopefully, either Pat or Bernice . . . Y eah. O K. Let’s . . .
does two hours sound doable? 11:30 instead of . . . ? Is that doable for you?
Mr. G. C lark Abbott: Yeah, fine.
Ch airm an Tanaka: OK . OK . So let’s set that date, then. W e’ll keep all of th ose . . . all . . .
Ms. Kapua`ala: M r. Ch air, we’d like to feed you. Let’s schedule that a little earlier, maybe 10:30 or
10:00. Then we can . . . whenever it concludes, you can break for lunch and then resume again
at 1:30 to your regularly scheduled date, hearing time.
Chairman Tanaka: 10:30?
Ms. Kapua`ala: Rather than pow ering through 10:30 till the . . .
Mr. Giro ux: N ot jus t the evidence, but you ’re gonna have to have time to deliberate. So just take
that into a cco unt.
Chairman Tanaka: OK. OK . So let’s set 10:00, 10:00, 10:00. Alrighty. Ten o’clock. Sorry, what
date is that again?
Ms. Kapua`ala: December 13th.
Chairman Tanaka: OK. December 13 th with all other dates . . . all stated dates as far as disclosure,
and evidence, and exhibits. OK. W ith tha t, Board Mem bers, any other comments or discussion?
OK. So with that, I need a m otion for this B oard to hear this . . . become the hearings officer fo r this
appeal.
Mr. Teddy Espeleta: So moved.
Chairman Tanaka: OK. It has been moved. Do I have a second?
Mr. Tanner: Second.
Chairman Tanaka: It has been moved and second. All those in favor, please say aye. Any
opposed?
It was moved by Mr. Espeleta, seconded by Mr. Tanner, then
VOTED:

To become the hearings officer for this appeal and to hear this matter
on De cember 13, 2012 at 10:00 a.m.
(Assenting:

T. Espeleta, R . Tanner, R . Shimabuku, J. Harag uchi,
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(Excused:

G. A bbott.)
P. D e Ponte, B . Santiago, B. V adla.)

Ch airm an Tanaka: Alrighty. We’ll hear this matter 10:00 a.m., December 13 th . Thank you.
C.

APPROVAL OF THE OCTOBER 25, 2012 MEETING MINUTES

Chairman Tanaka: OK. Next item is approval of our October 25 th 2012 mee ting minutes.
Mr. Abbott: Mo tion to approve as acce pted . . . (ina udible) . . .
Chairman Tanaka: OK. It has been moved to accept the minutes. Is there a second?
Mr. Tanner: Second.
Chairman Tanaka: All those in favor, please say aye. Any opposed?
It was moved by Mr. Abbott, seconded by Mr. Tanner, then
VOTED:

To accept the October 25, 2012 meeting minutes.
(Assenting:
(Excused:

G. A bbott, R . Tanner, T. Espeleta, R. S him abuku,
J. Haraguchi.)
P. D e Ponte, B . Santiago, B. V adla.)

Ch airm an Tanaka: Minutes are approved. Next item, Director’s report. Trish?
D.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT
1.

Status Update on BVA’s Contested Cases

Ms. Kapua`ala: I’m happy to report that we actually had a co ntested case sc heduled for today.
You’re suppos ed to have a h earing today, but they decided to withdraw and apply for a variance
instead, after talking with their Director. So that appeal was rem oved off the agend a for today.
That was the Strini Subdivision. Also, the Linex Appeal, that Molokai appeal, they settled as we ll
with the Public Works Director. So David Goode has been working hard to knock these out of the
park for you guys. Other than that, I may have another appeal to determine a hearings officer
scheduled probably not till next year. But you guys are pretty clear with contested cases.
Chairman Tanaka: OK . As far . . . you know, the December 13 variance, right, you said we have,
wh at typ e of varia nce is th at we’re looking at?
Ms. Kapua`ala: It’s a setback variance for the research and technology p ark in Kihei.
Chairman Tanaka: OK. OK.
Ms. Kapua`ala: It’s som ething that we possib ly could support and that would quicken the hearing.
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Chairman T ana ka: M ake it even easier.
Ms. Kapua`ala: Yeah.
Chairman Tanaka: Oh, OK. OK. Sorry, James, to back up, the . . . that item that Trish just
described and the Piilani hearings officer, d etermination of a hearings office r, wo uld it be possib le
. . . ? I guess not. No matter what, we’d have to start at 1:30?
Mr. Giroux: Yeah, 1:30, because the variance would have a public hearing notice. S o w e w ould
have to start at 1:30 because of that notice.
Chairman Tanaka: It has already been . . . yeah. OK.
Ms. Kapua`ala: You know , James, you bring up a good point, because I could give them proper
notice, 15 days, but unfortunately, it’s already been published in the Maui News for 1:30, which is
. . . required 30 days prior to the public hearing, so that happened November 13 th or so. So it’ll be
in the paper at least two or three more times.
Mr. Giroux: So for the Promenade, the appeal, is that of the Planning Director or the Public Works
Director’s decision?
Ms. Kapua`ala: The Promenade is the Planning Director’s decision to not enforce the State Land
Use C om mission’s c ondition s of approval.
Chairman Tanaka: Yeah, it’s the same thing except now instead of Public Works, they’re going after
the Planning De partment.
Ms. Kapua`ala: Planning, yes, because we’re charged with enforcing State Land U se Co mmission’s
decisions.
Mr. Giroux: Do we know when . . . ? Because they had the hearing. We’re waiting for the Land Use
Co mmission’s d ecision and order, right? Do w e know w hat the timing is o n that?
Ms. Kapua`ala: I don’t kn ow . I haven ’t touc hed base w ith Ja ne on that.
Chairman Tanaka: Yeah, because they did appear before them I guess was the end of August,
right, the 20-something of August?
Ms. Kapua`ala: Recently, I saw it in the paper. It was on the front page. I can follow up with Jane,
and if we can take this off th e agenda, that would be good.
Mr. Abbott: Someo ne in the State Land Use said the sale did not follow the original guidelines.
Mr. Giro ux: W e should probably not get into that.
Chairman Tanaka: Well, when w as that in the newspaper? I’ve been going online e very on ce in
a while trying to look up what the Maui News had stated so . . .
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Ms. Kapua`ala: I think I recall seeing it in the paper last week where it talked about Will Spence
going to O ahu to testify. Saturday, it wa s in the pap er.
Chairman Tanaka: OK. OK. I’ll check again. OK. Let’s see. Next item I see here, January 24 th,
Lanai me eting.
2.

January 24, 2013 Lanai Meeting

Chairman Tan aka: As far as those here , if you can see that far ahead on your schedule, do you
anticipate being available and attending the meeting? One, two, three. OK. OK. Yeah. OK.
‘Cause I’ll provide my typical answe r that I’m afraid to get seasick, as long as there’s quorum and
our Vice-C hair there.
E.

NEXT MEETING DATE:

Thursday, December 13, 2012

Chairman Tanaka: OK. Ou r next meeting date is th at Decem ber 13 at 10 o’clock. W e w ill hear this
appeal and then at 1:30, the other items. Anything else that we need to know? B oard Mem bers,
any discussion? No? Have a Happy Thanksgiving. We shall see you all on the 13 th . Me eting
adjourned.
F.

ADJOURNMENT

The re being no further business to come before the Board, the mee ting adjourned at approximately,
1:56 p.m.
Respectfully subm itted by,

TREMAINE K. BALBERDI
Secretary to Boards and Co mmissions II
RECORD OF ATTENDANCE
Me mbers Prese nt:
Kevin Tanaka, Chairman
Rick Tanner, Vice-Chairman
Teddy Espeleta
Ge ne “Clark” Abbott
Jacqueline Haraguchi
Ray Shimabuku
Members Excused:
Patrick D e Ponte
Bernice Vadla
Bart Santiago
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Others:
Aaron Shinm oto, Planning Program Administra tor, Planning D epartm ent
Francis Cerizo, Staff Planner, Planning De partment
Trisha Kapua`ala, Staff Planner, Planning Department
James Giroux, Deputy Corporation Counsel, Department of the Corporation Counsel

